
October 7, 2014     CITY COUNCIL AGENDA       6:00 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

OATH OF OFFICE
Officer James Argyro
Officer Matt Krysinski
Officer Nathan Padrta
Officer Claire Schricker

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
Governor’s Life Saving Award – Oak Harbor Police Officers Mike Clements and Mel Lolmaugh
Proclamation for National Planning Month
Employee Service Recognition – Tallie Boyer, Finance, 10 years of service

PRESENTATIONS
Rotary Club of Oak Harbor – Aaron Syring

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

4. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held on September 16, 2014, Workshop held on

September 24, 2014, and Special Meeting held on September 29, 2014.
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Nos.

- Voucher Numbers 159780 through 159972 in the amount of $755,663.07. 
Approval of Payroll Check Numbers

- Direct Deposit Numbers 35341 through 32498. 
- EFT Numbers 648 through 652. 
- Payroll Check Numbers 97468 through 97546.  

c. Ordinance 1699: Stormwater Code Amendment – Latecomer Agreements.
d. Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Cecil Pierce to the Planning Commission.
e. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Washington Public Agency Contract with MRSC to use the

MRSC Rosters as the official vendor rosters beginning January 1, 2015.

5. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

1



 
October 7, 2014                              CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                        6:00 p.m. 
 
6. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 a.   Ordinance 1697:  Consolidation of Park Impact Fees  
 b.   Resolution 14-29: Funding Sources for the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
 c.   Resolution 14-35: Adopting the Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and  
       Teamsters Local No. 231-Oak Harbor Marina 
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 a.   Ordinance 1698:  Budget Amendment   
 b.   Ordinance 1701:  Establish Park Impact Fees Fund No. 127 
  
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
 
9.         NEW BUSINESS 

a. Authorize the Mayor to Sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) Related to Archaeological Services on the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Project. 

b. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Washington State Department of Natural Resources Lease 
Amendment and Vender License to allow Commercial Use at the Marina. 
 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 2



3



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

September 16, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Bob Severns  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Councilmember Munns City Clerk Anna Thompson 

City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
Firefighter Paul Schroer 
Firefighter Ed Klaszky 
Firefighter Cameron Hopkins 
Firefighter Tim Walstad 

Councilmembers Almberg and Campbell were absent. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 

David B. Jenkins Sr., Senior Pastor of Living Faith Christian Center, gave the invocation, and 
Mayor Scott Dudley lead the pledge of allegiance.  

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 

Fire Chief Ray Merrill and Mayor Scott Dudley recognized employee Paul Schroer for 20 years 
of service. 

The Councilmembers thanked Mr. Schroer for his service to the City and the community. 

PRESENTATION 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:    Councilmember Munns moved to amend the Agenda to add Item 9.b, Appointment of 
     an Alternate Voting Member to the Island Transit Board of Directors.  Motion second- 

           ed by Councilmember Hizon, unanimously approved. 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as amended, Councilmem- 
 ber Munns seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously. 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
Regular Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2014 - Page 1 

4



 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 6:12 p.m.  
 
Citizen Comments 
 

Chadd Davis, Lions Club Member, spoke on the success of the Car Show held in Oak 
Harbor on August 9, 2014.  
Ron Wallen, Representative of Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County 
Penny Perka, Executive Officer of Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County  
Skip Pohtilla 

 
Mayor Dudley closed the comment period at 6:19 p.m. 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting and Special Meeting held on September 

2, 2014 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers  

- Voucher Numbers 159591 through 159779 in the amount of $1,292,585.95. 
 Approval of Payroll Check Numbers 

- Direct Deposit Numbers 32209 through 32340. 
- EFT Numbers 645 through 647. 
- Payroll Check Numbers 97453 through 97467. 

c. Authorization to surplus one Posi check machine to be traded to MES for one year of 
service credit on our current SCBA’s in the amount of $3,000.00. 

 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Consent Agenda items as presented.   
           Motion seconded by Councilmember Severns, carried unanimously. 
 
 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
No comments. 
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Dudley applauded Councilmember Munns for her work on the Military picnic September 
6, 2014. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Munns thanked supporters for the Driftwood Day event and the Military Picnic 
on September 6, 2014.  
Councilmember Severns thanked Ms. Munns for her efforts on the Military picnic.  He thanked 
citizens for voluntarily picking up trash after City events.  
Councilmember Hizon asked for updates regarding her request to establish a public process for 
board advisory committee and commission appointments.   She also requested a status update 
of repurposing the Garry Oak Tree from the Post Office.  

Regular Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2014 - Page 2 
 5



 
Dr. Cort explained that a small technical group of City staff and locals have been working on 
ideas over the summer, reviewing each piece, inventorying, and analyzing the character of the 
wood.  Once that has been completed, a committee will be formed to decide how to utilize the 
Oak Tree wood. 
 
Councilmember Servatius thanked Ms. Munns for the Military Picnic success and citizens’ in-
volvement cleaning the City after events.   
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to instruct staff to place an agenda item on the 9/24  
     Workshop to discuss drafting a policy to address the use of personal electronic devic- 
     es to conduct City business.   Motion seconded by Councilmember Munns. 
      

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

Resolution 14-27: 2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments Public Participation Plan 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 6:31 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 6:31 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Munns asked about the availability to capture citizen comments via blogs. Ms. 
Kamak explained that the blogging is most successful when specific issues are at bay.  
 
Resolution 14-27: 2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments Public Participation Plan 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to Adopt Resolution No. 14-27 approving Public  
           Participation Plan for the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update.   Motion Seconded by  
      Councilmember Servatius, carried unanimously. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

Resolution 14-25:  Adoption of 2014 Water System Plan  
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
A citizen submitted a question to Mr. Stowell regarding our water supply from Anacortes.  Mr. 
Stowell provided the City’s response. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 6:42 p.m., no comments, closed at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Resolution 14-25:  Adoption of 2014 Water System Plan  
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-25.  Motion Seconded by  
           Councilmember Munns, carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2014 - Page 3 
 6



Perkins Coie – Letter of Engagement for Legal Services related to the GC/CM Contract for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 6:46 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 6:47 p.m. 
 
Perkins Coie – Letter of Engagement for Legal Services related to the GC/CM Contract for 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the engagement  

    letter with Perkins Coie for legal services related to equipment procurement for the  
    Clean Water Facility.  Motion Seconded by Councilmember Hizon, motion carried  
    unanimously. 

 
 
9.b   Appointment of an Alternate Voting Member to the Island Transit Board of Directors 
City Administrator Larry Cort provided the staff report.  
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 6:52 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 6:52 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked about options at the end of December 31, 2014. 
 
Councilmember Munns spoke in support of approving an alternate member to the Island Transit 
Board of Directors. 
 
Councilmember Severns commented on an email sent to the City Council and Island Transit 
Board of Directors. 
 
Councilmember Hizon spoke in support of the alternate appointment. 
 
9.b   Appointment of an Alternate Voting Member to the Island Transit Board of Directors 
 
Motion:    Councilmember Hizon moved to approve the appointment of Mayor Dudley as an  

     alternate member to the Island Transit Board of Directors.  Motion seconded by  
     Councilmember Servatius, motion carried unanimously.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Councilmember Servatius moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously 
carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m.   
 
             Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Regular Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2014 - Page 4 
 7



Oak Harbor City Council 
Workshop & Special Meeting Minutes 

September 24, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley   City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  City Engineer Joe Stowell 

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Police Chief Ed Green 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
Senior Services Admin. Mike McIntyre 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 
Accountant Tallie Boyer 
City Engineer Joel Stowell  
Project Engineer John Piccone  
Cac Kamak Senior Planner  

Councilmembers Almberg, Campbell, Munns, and Severns were absent. 

DEPARTMENTAL BRIEFINGS 

1. Bayshore Corridor Master Plan and Development Strategy

City Administrator Dr. Cort introduced the Bayshore Corridor Master Plan and discussed 
development strategy. 

Possible Results of the development strategy: 

- Connector of Bayshore 
- RV Park 
- Swim Lagoon  
- Ball fields 
- West Pioneer 
- East Bayshore 

Workshop and Special Meeting Minutes– September 24, 2014 - Page 1 
8



Dr. Cort explained that the City does not plan to hire a consultant to lay ground work for 
redevelopment as staff and citizens have contributed significant plans and initiatives 
over the years.  
 

2. Economic Development Subcommittee Report 
 
George Saul discussed the Economic Development Subcommittee Report, consisting of 
a group of interested citizens.  Mr. Saul introduced other members of the Subcommit-
tee.   
 
Mr. Saul announced five initiatives proposed by the Subcommittee: 
 

1) Walk of Honor from Midway to Regatta – assembling veteran banners on the 
light poles 

2) Signage recommendations, including more visual cues for Downtown 
3) Downtown project on East Bayshore, particularly the vacant property where the 

carnival sets up 
4) Transportation between the Marina and Downtown 
5) Possible extension of the City Beach board walk and establish a visitor Marina 

closer to downtown. 
 

Councilmember Hizon asked how to implement the ideas presented.  Dr. Cort respond-
ed that the proposals will need to be brought before the Council and voted into the 
Budget. 
 
Councilmember Servatius inquired who will bring these proposals forward.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao informed the Council that the Mayor was called away, and then 
thanked the citizens for their economic development recommendations.   

 
3. Waste Water Treatment Plant – Emerging Policy Questions 

 
Project Engineer John Piccone discussed upcoming concerns regarding materials and 
construction of the Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
  
The price of moving Waste Water Treatment Plant materials offsite to Public Works is 
estimated to cost over $1 million dollars.  Staff has proposed alternatives to store the 
materials in proximity to the facility. 
 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen discussed legal obligations of their Department to 
provide educational training to the public regarding utilities, water, and sewer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Workshop and Special Meeting Minutes– September 24, 2014 - Page 2 
 9



PENDING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1. Resolution 14-29 Funding Plan for WWTP – (10/7) 
 

Finance Director Doug Merriman explained the uses of this Resolution, which will allow 
the Funding Plan to appear on the annual financials.  Funding reflected on the annual 
statements is important to show that the City has taken steps to reserve these funds for 
the Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked questions.  
 

2. Ordinance 1697:  Consolidation of Park Impact Fees – (10/7) 
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman described the types of impact fees the City adminis-
ters.  Ordinance 1697 will allow the City to consolidate the impact fee structures. This 
item will be presented to Council for approval on October 7, 2014. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked whether the bottom line will be the same.  Mr. Merri-
man explained that the fees should remain the same. 

 
3. Senior Services Membership Dues Increase – (10/21) 

 
Senior Services Administrator Mike McIntyre explained why the membership dues need 
to be increased from $30.00 to $40.00 annually.  The last membership increase was 
implemented 4 years ago. He noted that this cost increase should not equate to a hard-
ship for the members.  Moreover, there are willing donors associated with the Senior 
Center who can provide for those members who cannot afford the increase.  
 
Councilmember Servatius commented that the City may be able to find other ways to 
generate additional income in lieu of increasing membership dues.  

 
4. Ordinance 1698: Budget Amendment – Finance – (10/7) 

 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the background and purpose of Ordinance 
1698 Amendment, which is part of the biennial budget process.  The amendment in-
cludes restructuring of the HR Department, legal costs for Weed, Graafstra and Benson 
consultant services, removing arterials funds for the 7th Avenue project, and 2% monies.  
 

EMERGING ISSUES 
 

1. Policy to address the Council’s use of personal electronic devices to conduct City    
 Business  
 
Councilmember Servatius discussed the need for Councilmember issued devices.  He proposed 
that staff initiate policies governing the use of devices and the necessity to demarcate personal 
versus city business communications in light of public records requests. 
 
 
Workshop and Special Meeting Minutes– September 24, 2014 - Page 3 
 10



 
ACTION ITEM 

 
1. Authorize the Mayor to Sign an amended contract with Matt Montoya for  

       Public Defender Services  
 
Mr. Cort explained that because there is no quorum present and action needs to be tak-
en before October 1, 2014 on this item, a special meeting must be noticed before that 
date.  
 
The Council tentatively set the Special Meeting for Monday, September 29 at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao adjourned the meeting at 4:37 p.m. 

 
                                  Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 
 

Workshop and Special Meeting Minutes– September 24, 2014 - Page 4 
 11



Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Meeting Minutes 

September 29, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Councilmember Bob Severns  City Clerk Anna Thompson 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  

Councilmembers Beth Munns, Jim Campbell, and Rick Almberg were absent. 

AGENDA 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign an amended Contract with Matt Montoya for Public Defense
Services

Dr. Cort informed the Council that the Second Public Defender Georgina Sierra has terminated 
her services by October 1, 2014. 

Mayor Dudley opened the item for public discussion at 1:04 p.m., no comments, closed at 1:04 
p.m.  

Councilmember Hizon inquired whether Mr. Montoya has sufficient time to take over Ms. Sier-
ra’s case load. 

Councilmember Severns asked about the procedure to hire an attorney to assist with the case-
load. 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked whether the Court could have changed the hearing schedules to 
accommodate Ms. Georgina’s class schedule.  

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign an amended Contract 
  with Matt Montoya for Public Defense Services.  Motion seconded by Councilmember 
  Hizon, unanimously approved.   

Special Meeting Minutes – September 29, 2014 - Page 1 

12



ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 1:09 p.m. 
 
 
            Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Special Meeting Minutes – September 29, 2014 - Page 2 
 
 13



14



09/16/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

11:25:09AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159780 9/16/2014 0007618  BOBO, WILLIAM Ref000218035 UB Refund Cst #00163583  35.88

Total :  35.88

 159781 9/16/2014 0007619  CAMPBELL, KAREN Ref000218036 UB Refund Cst #00164272  112.50

Total :  112.50

 159782 9/16/2014 0007615  CLARK, CAMERON Ref000218031 UB Refund Cst #00161563  146.83

Total :  146.83

 159783 9/16/2014 0007612  FRIESZ, JEFF P Ref000218025 UB Refund Cst #00123467  100.00

Total :  100.00

 159784 9/16/2014 0001494  HOMES FOR RENT Ref000218034 UB Refund Cst #00163240  53.32

Total :  53.32

 159785 9/16/2014 0000483  KOETJE AGENCY Ref000218026 UB Refund Cst #00126193  135.54

Total :  135.54

 159786 9/16/2014 0007617  LAMSON, WILLIAM Ref000218033 UB Refund Cst #00163216  101.41

Total :  101.41

 159787 9/16/2014 0007614  LEE, HUMPHERY Ref000218030 UB Refund Cst #00161095  193.07

Total :  193.07

 159788 9/16/2014 0007611  MCLAUGHLIN, DALE OR KIMBERLY Ref000218024 UB Refund Cst #00122800  13.92

Total :  13.92

 159789 9/16/2014 0007613  MCMASTER, JASON Ref000218029 UB Refund Cst #00159016  150.00

Total :  150.00

 159790 9/16/2014 0007594  SEWARD, HEATHER Ref000216930 UB Refund Cst #00135557  11.76

Total :  11.76

 159791 9/16/2014 0007616  STEWART, GARRETT Ref000218032 UB Refund Cst #00162451  110.91

Total :  110.91

 159792 9/16/2014 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000218027 UB Refund Cst #00150607  82.41

1Page:

15



09/16/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

11:25:09AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159792 9/16/2014 (Continued)0001391  WINDERMERE

 150.00UB Refund Cst #00150607Ref000218028

Total :  232.41

Bank total :  1,397.55 13 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,397.55Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 13

2Page:

16



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159793 9/16/2014 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 091014 SALES/USE TAX  55,958.07

Total :  55,958.07

 159794 9/16/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304661 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,615.30

Total :  1,615.30

 159795 9/16/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  472.41

Total :  472.41

 159796 9/16/2014 0002943  BRAUNSTEIN, ANGELA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  63.79

Total :  63.79

 159797 9/16/2014 0007587  SMITH & WESSON, CORP 90174141 ARMORER/TOOL KIT  528.27

Total :  528.27

 159798 9/19/2014 0000506  LEIRA 091814 REGISTRATION/NOYES  175.00

Total :  175.00

 159799 9/19/2014 0001016  WHIDBEY NEWS TIMES WN0000218700 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL  45.00

Total :  45.00

 159800 9/29/2014 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 091614 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  234.00

Total :  234.00

 159801 9/30/2014 0000001  3M TP03899 TRANSFER TAPE  493.22

Total :  493.22

 159802 9/30/2014 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 21467 JANITORIAL SERVICES  315.25

 2,813.06JANITORIAL SERVICES21544

Total :  3,128.31

 159803 9/30/2014 0007332  ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV151870 PANTS/LOLMAUGH  126.07

 249.98BOOTS/CLEMENTSINV151872

 143.47BOOTS/CLEMENTSINV151926

Total :  519.52

 159804 9/30/2014 0005187  ALL AMERICAN GASKET, INC 12853 HYDRANT SIDE CAP GASKET  128.64

1Page:

17



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  128.64 159804 9/30/2014 0005187 0005187  ALL AMERICAN GASKET, INC

 159805 9/30/2014 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51164311 BATTERIES  365.07

 95.60BATTERIES71279326

 171.69BATTERIES71279751

Total :  632.36

 159806 9/30/2014 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 24430 MASTERLOCK  137.10

 54.78KEYS24440

 74.89LOCK INSTALLATION47538

Total :  266.77

 159807 9/30/2014 0000033  ALPINE PRODUCTS, INC TIM-143501 STENCIL  108.05

 96.82ROLL QUICK JOINTTM-143592

Total :  204.87

 159808 9/30/2014 0000712  AMERIGAS 3032515737 PROPANE/MARINA  161.38

Total :  161.38

 159809 9/30/2014 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 2013 2013 RECONCILIATION  139,501.46

Total :  139,501.46

 159810 9/30/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 35412 SEP 2014/WEB HOSTING  75.00

 425.00WEBSITE SERVICES46465

Total :  500.00

 159811 9/30/2014 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 UNIFORM SERVICES  1,018.61

Total :  1,018.61

 159812 9/30/2014 0006865  ARMADA 091814 COLLECTION FEE/37-551600-12/37-523246-04  462.97

Total :  462.97

 159813 9/30/2014 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 156153 PEST CONTROL  108.70

Total :  108.70

 159814 9/30/2014 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0629545-IN FUEL  5,360.67

 14,080.61FUEL0629562-IN

 28,750.27FUEL0630766-IN

2Page:

18



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159814 9/30/2014 (Continued)0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS

 13,900.21FUEL0635518-IN

 30,891.62FUEL0638052-IN

Total :  92,983.38

 159815 9/30/2014 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 2438 REGISTRATION/SEVERNS  250.00

 250.00REGISTRATION/ALMBERG2445

 175.00REGISTRATION/SERVATIUS2446

Total :  675.00

 159816 9/30/2014 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1402985-IN TESTNIG SERVICES  105.00

Total :  105.00

 159817 9/30/2014 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 152682 AC REPAIR  312.62

Total :  312.62

 159818 9/30/2014 0000081  BAY PRINTING 22989 BUSINESS CARDS  57.61

 171.75TRAVEL RECEIPTS23009

Total :  229.36

 159819 9/30/2014 0000094  BERG VAULT COMPANY 60657 CONCRETE  202.35

Total :  202.35

 159820 9/30/2014 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 151995 HOSE  72.61

 143.06SOLENOID KIT152202

 74.87CAP152209

Total :  290.54

 159821 9/30/2014 0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS 65851 ZIPPER  54.35

-54.35ZIPPER65851-80

 1,081.72UNIFORM ITEMS/PADRTA68249

 334.80UNIFORM ITEMS/PADRTA68249-01

 321.63JACKET/PADRTA68249-02

 1,081.72UNIFORM ITEMS/ARGYRO68374

 413.01UNIFORM ITEMS/ARGYRO68374-01

 336.85JACKET/ARGYRO68374-02

 78.75BELT/YZAGUIRRE79818

 430.23PANTS/GREEN81932

3Page:

19



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159821 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS

 219.47SHIRT/GREEN81932-80

 126.08TIE BARS/HOLSTER93391

Total :  4,424.26

 159822 9/30/2014 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 60810269 BATTERY  37.56

 775.84SMART PADS/MASKS/GLOVES81538109

Total :  813.40

 159823 9/30/2014 0006769  BRAUN CONSULTING GROUP 1766 AUG 2014/RETAINER  2,650.00

Total :  2,650.00

 159824 9/30/2014 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF29048 PLANS EXAMINER JOB POSTING  50.00

Total :  50.00

 159825 9/30/2014 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 1A RETAINAGE  1,738.40

 45,893.14PROF SVC/TRUCK SCALE2

Total :  47,631.54

 159826 9/30/2014 0000146  CAPITAL INDUSTRIES INC 098874 CONTAINERS  9,253.63

Total :  9,253.63

 159827 9/30/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 103681095211 SUPPLIES  564.61

 397.71SUPPLIES138431095211

 694.86SUPPLIES142186095211

 804.99SUPPLIES178481095211

 374.78SUPPLIES19476648

Total :  2,836.95

 159828 9/30/2014 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  10.71

 19.84NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 63.30NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 10.00NATURAL GAS/TREATMENT PLANT18583000007

 69.94NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 46.94NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

4Page:

20



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159828 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 103.96NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 46.08NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 14.54NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 134.36NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 20.74NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 27.89NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  621.85

 159829 9/30/2014 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 27388 TOWING SERVICES  193.49

 190.23TOWING SERVICES27484

Total :  383.72

 159830 9/30/2014 0007626  CLARITY SIGNS, INC 091714 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  5.00

Total :  5.00

 159831 9/30/2014 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 092414 PETTY CASH  105.00

Total :  105.00

 159832 9/30/2014 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 47627 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  334.52

 273.92MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES47645

 130.44MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES47685

Total :  738.88

 159833 9/30/2014 0003008  COLUMBIA FORD 3-F321 VEHICLE PURCHASE/P-7  35,742.25

 35,408.69VEHICLE PURCHASE/P-133-F322

 35,408.69VEHICLE PURCHASE/P-143-F323

Total :  106,559.63

 159834 9/30/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 CABLE  112.99

 12.71XFINITY8498300270032028

 210.72INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  336.42

 159835 9/30/2014 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 981485 R/M PRODUCTS  23.97

 131.520360A60983063

5Page:

21



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159835 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST

 869.91CRUSHED ROCK983343

 321.11BUILDING SAND983687

Total :  1,346.51

 159836 9/30/2014 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 78332 FUEL  54.76

Total :  54.76

 159837 9/30/2014 0007268  CORSA COMMUNICATIONS GLVM-1416 RACE GUIDE  420.00

Total :  420.00

 159838 9/30/2014 0000235  DAVIDO CONSULTING GROUP, INC 13873 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR SCENIC HEIGHTS DRAIN 277.75

Total :  277.75

 159839 9/30/2014 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 093014 SEP 2014/LAUNDRY SERVICES  357.56

Total :  357.56

 159840 9/30/2014 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 2015-BA0020567 BIOSOLIDS PERMIT  3,879.26

Total :  3,879.26

 159841 9/30/2014 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 14-17626 TESTING  1,068.00

 300.00TESTING14-17706

 18.00TESTING14-18222

 15.00TESTING/NORTH RESERVOIR14-19007

Total :  1,401.00

 159842 9/30/2014 0007381  ENGEL, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  200.00

Total :  200.00

 159843 9/30/2014 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 13-475-4 PROF SVC/WWTP  10,677.75

Total :  10,677.75

 159844 9/30/2014 0003154  ESRI 92869186 LICENSES  1,402.23

Total :  1,402.23

 159845 9/30/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK18100 TOILET PAPER  1,110.20

 51.47GRIP GLVWAOAK18194

 30.36FASTENERSWAOAK18218

6Page:

22



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159845 9/30/2014 (Continued)0002900  FASTENAL

 83.3914X2 NWH SDSWAOAK18240

Total :  1,275.42

 159846 9/30/2014 0004823  FEENEY WIRELESS 30137193 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  250.00

Total :  250.00

 159847 9/30/2014 0003413  FIRE SERVICE BOOKSTORE 300005234 ESSENTIALS OF FIRE FIGHTING 6TH EDITION  832.78

Total :  832.78

 159848 9/30/2014 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 2890136 BOOTS  80.97

Total :  80.97

 159849 9/30/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 1,294.61CURRENT PHONE CHARGES240-2350

 75.19CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 60.91CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 125.49CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-8539

 229.14CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568

 66.09CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 62.55CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669

 68.31CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 62.55CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 41.68CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 62.63CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 62.55CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858

 66.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500

 62.70CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640

 62.55CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651

 62.70CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789

 60.76CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 357.38CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628

 67.20CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902

 190.70CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 89.15CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

 138.29CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

7Page:

23



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159849 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER

 31.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  3,681.27

 159850 9/30/2014 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 97966 CONCRETE  52.35

-6.54CONCRETE97996

 10.51DRIED FIR98092

Total :  56.32

 159851 9/30/2014 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 100758 HOUSING  64.42

Total :  64.42

 159852 9/30/2014 0000328  GA INDUSTRIES, LLC 439008170 SEAT RING  929.78

Total :  929.78

 159853 9/30/2014 0000329  GALLS 002383176 PANTS  426.89

 73.47PANTS002431320

 73.46PANTS002455791

Total :  573.82

 159854 9/30/2014 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,000.00

Total :  1,000.00

 159855 9/30/2014 0004048  GEOTEST SERVICES, INC 30585 PROF SVC/TRUCK SCALE  1,693.15

Total :  1,693.15

 159856 9/30/2014 0001598  GORDON D KEYES DDS, INC 092214 INMATE SERVICES  250.00

Total :  250.00

 159857 9/30/2014 0000349  GRAINGER 9538425688 REDUCERS/ELBOWS/PADS  382.08

Total :  382.08

 159858 9/30/2014 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 030170 SEP 2014/TOURIST PROMOTION  6,666.67

Total :  6,666.67

 159859 9/30/2014 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8294 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  1,160.00

Total :  1,160.00

8Page:

24



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159860 9/30/2014 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 531697 RADIO MONITORING  240.27

Total :  240.27

 159861 9/30/2014 0007533  HANNAHAN, DANIELLE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  10.00

Total :  10.00

 159862 9/30/2014 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY C337262 JOINT ADAPTER/CORP STOP -521.48

 548.66JOINT ADAPTER/CORP STOPI3733943

Total :  27.18

 159863 9/30/2014 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 54806339 COMPUTERS  7,336.51

Total :  7,336.51

 159864 9/30/2014 0006547  HISEY, DAVE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00

Total :  20.00

 159865 9/30/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1020486 SCREWS/FLASH  33.65

 86.37SHEETING/PLUGS1020988

 71.30VALVE BOXES1563640

 50.67END PIECE/SLIP JOINT/CAP/GUTTERS/HANGERS2020089

 17.89DOOR SWEEP/DR BOTTOM2020214

 19.16DOWNSPOUT/B ELBOW2020271

 44.00TAILPIECE/SLVNT TUBE/PIPE/ELBOW/BUSHING/2020757

 88.262X6 8 HF/CLAMPS/LINK/BOLTS2023878

 17.31PICKETS/SPRAY2023908

 44.48KNIFE/4PCSANTDRV/PLIERS2042762

 264.09HSK/BLOWER24633

 25.77ANCHOR/SCREWS2590178

 32.56OSI4X4T8EL4020091

 51.06BE123LXPRSLG4020113

 17.22DUCT TAPE/ADAPTERS/WETDRY5011174

 14.12ROOT KILLER5023305

 18.63RTD SHTG5023497

 4.97LEG TIPS591540

 75.62PIPE/DRAIN/COUPLING6565311

 62.622X4 10 HF/SIDING6590896

-10.18CPLG8093462

9Page:

25



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159865 9/30/2014 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 21.65SCREWS/DOOR STOP8562956

 10.80PLC7WPL-S8584293

 2.7011/2BNTWSHSJ8590623

 52.53BLEACH/SPRY/JOMAX9021650

 17.58BUSHING9041556

 43.41TANK EXCHANGE9583135

Total :  1,178.24

 159866 9/30/2014 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 468255 COFFEE SUPPLIES  145.32

Total :  145.32

 159867 9/30/2014 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 091214 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67

Total :  166.67

 159868 9/30/2014 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 570555-1 STRIPPER  341.94

 631.97UNIONS/CONNECTORS/SOCKETS/PINS/NYLON TIE571015-1

Total :  973.91

 159869 9/30/2014 0007627  IRG OAK HARBOR PHYSICAL 092414 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  25.00

Total :  25.00

 159870 9/30/2014 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 1125115 DUMPING FEE  204.50

Total :  204.50

 159871 9/30/2014 0000414  ISLAND CUSTOM UPHOLSTERY 581123 REPAIRS  48.92

Total :  48.92

 159872 9/30/2014 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 090314 AUG 2014/COLLECTION CHARGES  13,808.86

 102.41RECYCLING3718073

Total :  13,911.27

 159873 9/30/2014 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114507202380 INMATE MEDS  31.65

 68.89INMATE MEDS114507202520

 80.00HEPATITIS IMMUNIZATIONS114508204169

 80.00HEPATITIS IMMUNIZATIONS114509134187

Total :  260.54

10Page:

26



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159874 9/30/2014 0007296  ISLAND FAMILY PHYSICIANS 082214 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  170.00

Total :  170.00

 159875 9/30/2014 0007622  JEFFERSON HEALTHCARE PORT LUD 71310107641 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  236.00

Total :  236.00

 159876 9/30/2014 0004007  KAMAK, RAJESH TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  91.50

Total :  91.50

 159877 9/30/2014 0006362  KBA, INC 3001844 PROF SVC/NORTH RESERVOIR  1,011.91

 26,555.80PROF SVC/WINDJAMMER PARK STORMWATER OUTF3001847

Total :  27,567.71

 159878 9/30/2014 0000476  KERR, JACK 09-14 SEP 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 159879 9/30/2014 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5102668MB ASPHALT  458.82

Total :  458.82

 159880 9/30/2014 0007621  LOBBESTAEL, RICHARD 736414 SAFE LINER  380.45

Total :  380.45

 159881 9/30/2014 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00

Total :  132.00

 159882 9/30/2014 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  78.00

 285.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  363.00

 159883 9/30/2014 0002449  LUNDGREN, KATHLEEN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  67.00

Total :  67.00

 159884 9/30/2014 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 87934 YARD WASTE  20.00

 10.00YARD WASTE88619

 20.00YARD WASTE89029

 20.00YARD WASTE89062

-158.55CREDIT89720C

 158.55YARD WASTE89998

11Page:

27



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  70.00 159884 9/30/2014 0000530 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY

 159885 9/30/2014 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 057322 GROCERIES  342.28

 383.12GROCERIES175762

 14.66GROCERIES175775

 307.46GROCERIES175780

Total :  1,047.52

 159886 9/30/2014 0007306  MASSEY, MEG EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  99.16

 1,050.62EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  1,149.78

 159887 9/30/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P36113 AUG 2014/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  497.52

 2,921.33AUG 2014/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICESP36114

Total :  3,418.85

 159888 9/30/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 36113 AUG 2014/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  286.75

 889.06AUG 2014/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS36114

Total :  1,175.81

 159889 9/30/2014 0000544  MATERIALS TESTING & CONSULTING 13157REV MAR 2014/NORTH RESERVOIR  8,064.00

 12,637.50AUG 2014/NORTH RESERVOIR13542

Total :  20,701.50

 159890 9/30/2014 0000040  MATRIX 608285474 LONG DISTANCE  450.99

Total :  450.99

 159891 9/30/2014 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE 091714 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

 8.48EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  28.48

 159892 9/30/2014 0007623  MCHALE, RUSTY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00

Total :  90.00

 159893 9/30/2014 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  34.41

Total :  34.41

 159894 9/30/2014 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  47.00

12Page:

28



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  47.00 159894 9/30/2014 0002291 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY

 159895 9/30/2014 0000558  MERRILL, RAY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  299.00

Total :  299.00

 159896 9/30/2014 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 109 SEP 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  5,500.00

Total :  5,500.00

 159897 9/30/2014 0007628  MORRISON, PETER 4542 MOORAGE REFUND  806.16

Total :  806.16

 159898 9/30/2014 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MB86390 PROBE  110.40

 6,305.70REPAIR SERVICESMTS214628

 123.17SEALMV82782

-98.82SWITCHMV85803

 41.66SWITCHMV88538

-135.00CREDITMV88891

Total :  6,347.11

 159899 9/30/2014 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00554655_SNV BOOTS/BAER  271.69

 691.57BOOTS/MERRILL/ANDERSON/FIKSE00556881_SNV

 742.19ELEMENTS00559696_SNV

 55.20TACTICAL POLO/HOPKINS00560126_SNV

Total :  1,760.65

 159900 9/30/2014 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0530973-IN FUEL  797.65

Total :  797.65

 159901 9/30/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 243028 CAP  4.12

 3.79BOLTS243585

 56.06BLEACH/SPRAYER/PIPE/BULBS/ADAPTERS/ELBOW244813

 85.39TARGETS244830

 20.62COUPLE/ADAPTER/CEMENT244875

 12.47BLEACH/COUPLERS244882

 5.42RSTP SPRAY244907

 28.24CLEANER244937

 58.67CABLE TIES244945

 23.62WIRE/FASTENERS244955

13Page:

29



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159901 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 10.85RSTP SPRAY245064

 7.13CAULK245076

 8.14SPRAY MARKING245077

 66.13BRUSH/KNIFE/SCRAPER/SCREWDRIVER245081

 9.47FASTENERS/WINDOW CLEANER245109

 18.01BULBS/COVER/LOOM245129

 10.86MAP PRO GAS245140

 30.39WAX/PAINTER245162

 9.77CLEANER245176

 6.51HANDLE245177

 19.54CABLE TIES245220

 1.60SMARTLOCK/RECEPTACLE245227

 43.47STEP LADDER245266

 135.86DRILL BITS/PLUG245290

 22.84COUPLE/TEES/ADAPTERS/UNIONS245322

 25.29QUICK LINK245324

 17.48BRACE/FASTENERS245382

 10.96INSERT/FASTENERS245424

 0.38FASTENERS245439

 4.42FASTENERS245464

 8.94NIPPLES245498

 32.57BULBS245512

 9.51COUPLE/TEES/ADAPTERS/UNIONS245520

 6.50COVER245528

 6.50COUPLE245556

 2.49INSERT245570

 6.83POWER BIT/STRAP245603

 15.73SPRAYPAINT/GLITTER245607

 9.84ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES/COUPLE/ADAPTER245611

 9.77SEALANT245669

 9.71MASKING TAPE245730

 14.98FASTENERS/INSERT245781

 24.99SURGE STRIP245799

Total :  915.86

 159902 9/30/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-195545 CREDIT -22.68

14Page:

30



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159902 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER

 9.42PARTS001-207526

-23.64PURGE VALVE001-214767

 46.77BAND/TEE001-215190

 4.85STAT STRAP001-215532

 7.75MINI LAMP001-215542

 20.50FILTERS001-215765

 7.45MINI LAMP001-215797

 9.00FILTERS001-216113

 8.82FILTERS001-216126

 84.58CANISTER PURGE001-216149

 49.21FILTERS001-216153

 5.21TOGGLE001-216341

 73.45UNI TRAIL LOCK001-216567

 8.82FILTERS001-216576

 211.99FILTERS001-216669

 10.98FITTINGS001-216706

 4.40FILTERS001-216754

Total :  516.88

 159903 9/30/2014 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 093014 MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 159904 9/30/2014 0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS 86618 CONTRACT SERVICES  282.62

Total :  282.62

 159905 9/30/2014 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 727189242001 INK  99.10

Total :  99.10

 159906 9/30/2014 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 478806 REBATE -1.69

 130.43DESKTOP595882

Total :  128.74

 159907 9/30/2014 0000666  OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE 714656 PROF SVC/SWINOMISH INDIAL TRIBAL COMMUNI 1,181.02

Total :  1,181.02

 159908 9/30/2014 0004353  OLYMPIC TRAILER & TRUCK, INC 56561 2014 OUTLAW  1,788.11

15Page:

31



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,788.11 159908 9/30/2014 0004353 0004353  OLYMPIC TRAILER & TRUCK, INC

 159909 9/30/2014 0000089  OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 00072991 IGNITION SWITCH  383.12

Total :  383.12

 159910 9/30/2014 0000699  PATRICK & COMPANY 891980 ANIMAL LICENSES  338.89

Total :  338.89

 159911 9/30/2014 0000709  PERS 01065585 AUG 2014/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 159912 9/30/2014 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 230544 STAMPS  21.69

Total :  21.69

 159913 9/30/2014 0003038  POWELL, HH 0905 LATCHING SYSTEM  60.00

Total :  60.00

 159914 9/30/2014 0005069  PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 214845 SFL ARM  2,486.85

Total :  2,486.85

 159915 9/30/2014 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0021259-IN CONES  1,407.67

 75.69SOLES/RATCHETS0021673-IN

Total :  1,483.36

 159916 9/30/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/DISPLT  1,065.99

 10.34ELECTRICITY/WINDMILL200000919684

 2,169.72ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 15.52ELECTRICITY/E BATH200001097589

 13.30ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 182.07ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 68.99ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 147.04ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917

 20.75ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.86ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT200002037261

 76.66ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 48.03ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 169.02ELECTRICITY/CMFTST200002723381

16Page:

32



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159916 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 13.07ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170

 13.07ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170

 16.64ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 223.87ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD200003459654

 28.63ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE200004342099

 119.13ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 96.55ELECTRICITY/1019 SW SWANTOWN AVENUE200004839284

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.25ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 14.23ELECTRICITY/WKITCH200005461666

 6,223.72ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 12.94ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 169.96ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

 148.86ELECTRICITY/700 AVE W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 17.55ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 38.42ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 97.84ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 23.70ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 73.12ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGHTS200010530240

 18.71ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 228.08ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 147.80ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 116.49ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 13.07ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13.07ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 66.37ELECTRICITY/BALLPK200010699706

 904.15ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 19.12ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 13.72ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.80ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,156.22ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 2,521.63ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 16.81ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

17Page:

33



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159916 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 1,602.78ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 1,659.98ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD200013734963

 489.59ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 104.30ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 55.42ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 1,045.39ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 101.53ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVENUE200015618321

 60.90ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 310.35ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 1,709.47ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 98.87ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 66.44ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE ROAD200017653656

 176.90ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 13.30ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,473.92ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 47.18ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 46.93ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 11.55ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN ROAD200020179194

 514.78ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 13.85ELECTRICITY/KITCH200020308330

 36.80ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 26.14ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 16.64ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 52.64ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 31.82ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 197.64ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 120.52ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 51.67ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

 13.33ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & CARNEG220002247165

 798.70ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 790.88ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 390.28ELECTRICITY/STAYSAIL RV PARK300000005003

 13,092.00ELECTRICITY/FT NUGENT RD300000007421

 13,092.00ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 26.50ELECTRICITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

18Page:

34



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159916 9/30/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 27.49ELECTRICITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

 61.53ELECTRICITY/NE 11TH AVE300000010409

 233.95ELECTRICITY/INTSCTN OF MIDWAY & NE 8300000010458

 155.74ELECTRICITY/900 SE MIDWAY BLVD300000010516

Total :  55,467.76

 159917 9/30/2014 0006762  RAINIER ENVIRONMENTAL 1590 TESTING SERVICES  700.00

Total :  700.00

 159918 9/30/2014 0004338  RAINWISE, INC 3216 RAINFALL DATA LOGGER  1,131.00

Total :  1,131.00

 159919 9/30/2014 0004299  RED LION HOTEL WENATCHEE 26779941 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/GREEN  93.96

Total :  93.96

 159920 9/30/2014 0003060  RED LION HOTEL YAKIMA CENTER 2202 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/HAMMOND  471.50

Total :  471.50

 159921 9/30/2014 0007608  RESTORER, LLC 3713 WINDSHIELD REPLACEMENTS  423.93

Total :  423.93

 159922 9/30/2014 0000965  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 091714 UNCLAIMED PROPERTY  390.41

Total :  390.41

 159923 9/30/2014 0007624  RIKER, MELISSA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,100.00

 375.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB2

 22.76EXP REIMBEXP REIMB3

Total :  1,497.76

 159924 9/30/2014 0007629  ROLDAN, JOHN 1510 MOORAGE REFUND  266.00

Total :  266.00

 159925 9/30/2014 0000781  SAFEWAY 800391 GROCERIES  19.99

Total :  19.99

 159926 9/30/2014 0000799  SCOTTIES PLUMBING AND REPAIR 38330 REBUILD KIT  141.29

19Page:

35



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  141.29 159926 9/30/2014 0000799 0000799  SCOTTIES PLUMBING AND REPAIR

 159927 9/30/2014 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 080814 PETTY CASH  154.52

Total :  154.52

 159928 9/30/2014 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH08-2014 AUG 2014/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 159929 9/30/2014 0003782  SHARP ELECTRONICS CORPORATION C811802-701 AUG 2014/MAINTENANCE CONTRACT  3.98

Total :  3.98

 159930 9/30/2014 0000964  SHERIFFS & POLICE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OFDUES 2014-00581 ASSOCIATE DUES/GARDNER  75.00

Total :  75.00

 159931 9/30/2014 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9404130397 SHREDDING  145.00

 52.97SHREDDING9404170570

 52.97SHREDDING9404170625

Total :  250.94

 159932 9/30/2014 0007250  SIEBERT, BRENDA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  47.00

Total :  47.00

 159933 9/30/2014 0005444  SIERRA, GEORGINA D 092814 SEP 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 159934 9/30/2014 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-288900 LED EXT MDL KIT  166.59

 38.31KIT AD-914-292066-1

 279.55CAMERA14-292072

 234.76SPRING BRAKE VALVE14-292915

 322.15BATTERY CUT OFF SWITCH14-293435

 70.91BREAKAWAY SYSTEM14-293567

 106.44NON CHLORINATED BRAK14-294282

Total :  1,218.71

 159935 9/30/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 412573 GLOVES  6.51

 35.85FERT/GLOVES412730

Total :  42.36

20Page:

36



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159936 9/30/2014 0000833  SKAGIT HYDRAULICS 130851 VICKERS  627.93

Total :  627.93

 159937 9/30/2014 0006605  SKAGIT POWDER COATING, INC 14077 SUN BENCH  915.47

Total :  915.47

 159938 9/30/2014 0007625  SOTELO, EUNICE 092314 KEY DEPOSIT REFUND  5.00

Total :  5.00

 159939 9/30/2014 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 665488 AUG 2014/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80124985  429.00

 338.55AUG 2014/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#8012560080125600

 142.04CITY NOTICESWCW585301

 85.97PH-PERMIT EXTENSION ADULT DAY CARE AND MWCW586520

 53.58ORDINANCESWCW586527

 53.58PH RESOLUTION 14-25 ADOPTION OF WATER SYWCW586566

 85.97TC AGENDA 9/16/14WCW587908

Total :  1,188.69

 159940 9/30/2014 0007620  SOUTH SOUND PHYSICAL THERAPY 090814 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  25.00

Total :  25.00

 159941 9/30/2014 0007401  SPENCE, BARBARA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  532.80

Total :  532.80

 159942 9/30/2014 0005488  SPOO, ETHAN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  91.50

Total :  91.50

 159943 9/30/2014 0000851  SPRINT 140239187 LONG DISTANCE  8.81

 5.72LONG DISTANCE182311697

Total :  14.53

 159944 9/30/2014 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 092214 LIFE/POCFF  258.13

Total :  258.13

 159945 9/30/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3237100176 SANITIZER/MAILER/TONER  560.39

 376.90RUBBERBANDS/DUCT TAPE/CORRECTION TAPE/MA3240234800

 122.49TONER3240896314

 122.49TONER3240896315

21Page:

37



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159945 9/30/2014 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

 244.99TONER3240896316

 244.99TONER3240896317

 244.99TONER3240896318

 222.81TONER3240896319

 26.13STAMP3240896321

 8.26RIBBON3240896324

 122.81FOLDERS/PENS3240896325

 200.43DIVIDERS/BINDERS3240896326

 73.37PAPER3241935605

 43.47ADAPTER3241935606

 163.88PRESENTATION CART3242449634

 38.88PENS/MARKERS3242449635

 9.75PAPER CLIPS/ADD ROLLS/TAPE3242449637

 347.82TONER3242449638

 21.38TAPE3242449640

 31.60DESKTOP3242449641

 38.53DRYLINE/POST ITS3242449642

 35.71CANDLE/SANITIZER3242449643

 76.98INK3242449644

 36.82PENS/POST ITS/GLIDE3242449645

 32.90PAPER/BLK MSE3242449646

 20.42DISPLAYPORT3243001531

 77.60DESKTOP3243001533

 84.07POST ITS/INDEX TABS3243001534

Total :  3,630.86

 159946 9/30/2014 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L104652 2014 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2013  17,687.33

Total :  17,687.33

 159947 9/30/2014 0006190  STOWELL, JOSEPH TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  16.30

Total :  16.30

 159948 9/30/2014 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00

 126.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  222.00

22Page:

38



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

23

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159949 9/30/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1007984 PEST EXTERMINATION  32.61

 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1009998

 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1012545

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1029390

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1030172

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1030588

Total :  277.20

 159950 9/30/2014 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA 091714 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 159951 9/30/2014 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 988432 FLAGS  79.46

Total :  79.46

 159952 9/30/2014 0007280  TRI COUNTY RECYCLING, INC 11 RECYCLING  2,465.30

Total :  2,465.30

 159953 9/30/2014 0006249  TRUCK SHOP 71819 TANK  388.77

Total :  388.77

 159954 9/30/2014 0004847  TULL, NANCY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  23.00

Total :  23.00

 159955 9/30/2014 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-117401 TRAINING  450.00

Total :  450.00

 159956 9/30/2014 0006331  ULINE 61485204 SUCTION CUP W/HOOK  158.03

 748.65FOAM BOARD61760002

Total :  906.68

 159957 9/30/2014 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 091814 LONG TERM CARE  215.70

Total :  215.70

 159958 9/30/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000611990 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  3,359.34

Total :  3,359.34

 159959 9/30/2014 0006156  US POSTAL SERVICE - HASLER 182677 POSTAGE  3,000.00

23Page:

39



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

24

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  3,000.00 159959 9/30/2014 0006156 0006156  US POSTAL SERVICE - HASLER

 159960 9/30/2014 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 434881 FLUORIDE  318.20

Total :  318.20

 159961 9/30/2014 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 4080174 AUG 2014/LOCATES  80.08

Total :  80.08

 159962 9/30/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9731723760 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,581.06

Total :  4,581.06

 159963 9/30/2014 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I15001203 BACKGROUND CHECKS  10.00

 396.00BACKGROUND CHECKSI15001460

Total :  406.00

 159964 9/30/2014 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF27 PROF SVC/GENERAL 2014  5,676.60

Total :  5,676.60

 159965 9/30/2014 0000995  WEST, GARY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  39.94

 39.53EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 39.64EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 35.11EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 1,345.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB2

Total :  1,499.22

 159966 9/30/2014 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC E207417 HOSE  93.91

 133.04HOSEE207727

 225.54FUEL TANK STEPT669051

 372.15RADIATOR HOSE/ELBOWT670266

Total :  824.64

 159967 9/30/2014 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 218479 WARRANTY -19.95

 50.74NON-DETER 30 QT223333

 46.49HANDLE224046

 110.87ARGON MIX224391

Total :  188.15

 159968 9/30/2014 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 072514-134 PHYSICAL/HOLMAN  150.00

24Page:

40



09/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

25

 3:51:23PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  150.00 159968 9/30/2014 0000675 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS

 159969 9/30/2014 0001009  WHIDBEY FENCING 1285 FENCING  3,494.79

Total :  3,494.79

 159970 9/30/2014 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL WAC04588 INMATE SERVICES  1,122.00

 405.45INMATE SERVICESWAC04825

Total :  1,527.45

 159971 9/30/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 47191 BUSINESS CARDS/UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  117.12

Total :  117.12

 159972 9/30/2014 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701784118 JUL 2014/COPIER RENTAL  4,411.49

Total :  4,411.49

Bank total :  754,265.52 180 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 754,265.52Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 180

25Page:

41



42



ORDINANCE NO. 1699 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OHMC SECTION 
12.10.150 ENTITLED “LATECOMER AGREEMENTS”.  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 12.10.150 entitled "Latecomer Agreements", 
last amended by Section 12 of Ordinance No. 1085 in 1997, is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

12.10.150 Latecomer Agreements.   
(1) General. The utility may enter into any contracts authorized under Chapter 35.91 RCW, the 
Municipal Water and Sewer Facilities Act, including contracts which provide for the 
reimbursement of property owners constructing public facilities, commonly known as latecomer 
agreements. 

(2) Requesting a Latecomer Agreement. A property owner may request a latecomer agreement if 
the owner constructs a public drainage facility that benefits property in addition to the owner’s 
property and it is not feasible for the owner to include such other property owners in the drainage 
system extension agreement. The request must be made in writing and unit costs must be 
provided before the utility accepts the facility. 

(3) Zone of Benefit. The utility will determine what properties benefit from the public drainage 
facility and shall be subject to the latecomer agreement. 

(4) Method of Cost Allocation. The utility will determine the method of cost allocation used. 

(5) Recording. The utility will record the latecomer agreement with Island County against the 
benefiting properties at the property owner’s expense. 

(6) Cost to Latecomer. As a condition of connection to the public drainage facility, each 
latecomer shall pay, at the time of connection, his/her pro rata share of the construction costs of 
the drainage facility, which are determined by the utility and specified in the latecomer 
agreement. Construction costs shall include but are not limited to design, installation, inspection, 
construction management, interest and the utility’s project management costs. 

(7) Agreement Duration. Latecomer agreements may be in effect for up to 15 years following 
acceptance of the drainage facility. 

(8) Forwarding Latecomer Payment. While the latecomer agreement is in effect, the utility will 
collect the latecomer payments and forward them to the property owner who paid for the 
drainage facility, as specified in the agreement. 

Latecomer Agreement Section 12.10.150 
Ordinance - 1 
C:\Users\lbebee\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\TBRYTIU3\Latecomer Housekeeping Ordinance #2.docx 

43



The utility may enter into any contracts authorized under Chapter 35.91 RCW, the Municipal 
Water and Sewer Facilities Act, including contracts which provide for the reimbursement of 
property owners constructing public facilities, commonly known as latecomer agreements.  The 
procedures for entering into storm water latecomer agreements shall be as described OHMC 
Chapter 18.35. 
 
Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publication. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 7th day of October, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
    Veto        (   ) 
    Approve (   ) 
              
       Mayor 
        
              
       Date 
Attest: 
 
 
       
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
City Attorney 
 
Published:       
 
 
 

Latecomer Agreement Section 12.10.150 
Ordinance - 2 
C:\Users\lbebee\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\TBRYTIU3\Latecomer Housekeeping Ordinance #2.docx 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



ORDINANCE NO. 1697 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OAK 
HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE 3.63.020 AND 3.63.030 TO CONSOLIDATE 
THE NEIGHBORHOOD PARK IMPACT FEE AND THE COMMUNITY 
PARK IMPACT FEE INTO ONE PARK IMPACT FEE. 

WHEREAS, Oak Harbor Municipal Code 3.63.020 and 3.63.030 provide for a neighborhood 
park impact fee imposed in the amount of $215.00 for a single-family residence lot and $177.00 
for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot, as well as a community park impact fee 
in the amount of $621.50 for a single-family residence lot and $495.00 for a multiple-family, 
mobile home or modular home lot; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor desires to consolidate the neighborhood park impact fee and 
the community park impact feel into a singular park impact fee; and 

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the City Council that the consolidation of the neighborhood park 
impact fee and the community park impact fee into a park impact fee will provide greater 
efficiency and planning flexibility into the City’s process of acquiring and developing park 
infrastructure.  

Now, therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  OHMC 3.63.020 and 3.63.030 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

3.63.020 Payment and amount of park impact fees by subdivider. 
(1) All persons proposing any subdivision of property zoned for residential use may pay the 
impact fee set out hereinafter in accordance with the provisions of this chapter at the time that 
the plat of the subdivision receives preliminary approval. Payment for short plats may be at the 
time the subdivision receives administrator’s approval; provided, however, that the impact fees 
herein assessed may be paid at or before the time of final approval of a long subdivision if such 
fees are bonded as an additional cost. Impact fees not paid at the time of subdivision or short plat 
approval shall be paid at the time of building permit issuance. 

(2) The neighborhood park impact fee imposed in this section shall be $215.00 for a single-
family residence lot and $177.00 for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot as 
computed in the appendix. 

(3) The community park impact fee imposed in this section shall be $621.50 for a single-family 
residence lot and $495.00 for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot as computed 
in the appendix. 

(4) The combined park impact fee imposed in this section shall be $836.50 for a single-family 
residence lot and $672.00 for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot as computed 

ORDINANCE NO. 1697 – Page 1 of 3 

56



in the appendix. (Ord. 1643* § 1, 2013; Ord. 1473 § 2, 2006; Ord. 1103 § 3, 1997; Ord. 1045, 
1996). 

*Code reviser’s note: Ord. 1643 § 7, as amended by Ord. 1695 § 1, provides: “This 
ordinance shall be in full force and effect on September 3, 2014. The portions of the 
ordinance that reduce the amount of impact fees collected shall remain in effect until 
March 4, 2015.” 

3.63.030 Payment and amount of park impact fees. 
(1) Prior to the issuance of any building permit for any single-family residence, multiple-family 
residence, or for installation of any modular or mobile home, the park impact fees imposed 
herein shall be paid, less any credit for impact fees paid under this chapter at time of subdividing 
property. 

(2) The neighborhood park impact fee imposed in this section shall be $215.00 for a single-
family residence lot and $177.00 for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot as 
computed in the appendix. 

(3) The community park impact fee imposed in this section shall be $621.50 for a single-family 
residence lot and $495.00 for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot as computed 
in the appendix. 

(4) The combined park impact fee imposed in this section shall be $836.50 for a single-family 
residence lot and $672.00 for a multiple-family, mobile home or modular home lot as computed 
in the appendix. 

(5) Where a building consisting of one or more dwelling units is replaced by another building of 
one or more dwelling units, there shall be a credit against the payment of the fees imposed herein 
of the amount that would have been paid for the destroyed or removed building had it been 
assessed hereunder, or, if it was assessed hereunder, of the amount actually paid. (Ord. 1643* 
§ 1, 2013; Ord. 1473 § 2, 2006; Ord. 1103 § 4, 1997; Ord. 1045, 1996). 

*Code reviser’s note: Ord. 1643 § 7, as amended by Ord. 1695 § 1, provides: “This 
ordinance shall be in full force and effect on September 3, 2014. The portions of the 
ordinance that reduce the amount of impact fees collected shall remain in effect until 
March 4, 2015.” 

 
 
Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1697 – Page 2 of 3 
 

57

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1643.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1643.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1695.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1643.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1643.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1695.pdf


PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2014. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  

ORDINANCE NO. 1697 – Page 3 of 3 
 

58



59



60



61



62



63



RESOLUTION NO.  14-29 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 
ACCEPTING AND APPROVING RECOMMENDATIONS SUBMITTED FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF FUNDING THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND STAFF TO 
PREPARE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY FOR LOAN AND GRANT FUNDING, FOR 
A REVENUE BOND SALE, AND FOR ANY FEE OR RATE ADJUSTMENTS 
NECESSARY TO SERVICE THE AMORTIZATION OF THE REVENUE BONDS. 

WHEREAS, the City has held meetings on a regular basis, has reviewed and analyzed relevant 
information and facts, prepared a proposal as a basis for public discussion, conducted public 
outreach activities, and prepared a project funding recommendation for the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, City staff authorize the Mayor and staff to prepare grant and loan applications, 
and to issue revenue bonds to fund the total project cost, and 

WHERE AS, the City has expended certain costs related to the project, the City expects to 
design, construct and to make capital expenditures  on and after the date of adoption of 
this resolution in connection with the improvements  set forth in this resolution, and the City 
intends to reimburse  itself for such expenditures with the proceeds  of loans or  revenue 
bonds plus  costs  of  issuance  and  plus  costs  of interest on any temporary financing, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor wishes the Wastewater Treatment Plant funding 
commitments be authorized by resolution of City Council; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR THAT: 

Section 1.  The Oak Harbor City Council hereby accepts and approves the recommendations 
provided by the staff as described in Attachment A, a copy of which is attached and 
incorporated herein; and 

Section 2.  The City Council authorizes the Mayor and staff to begin implementing these 
recommendations by preparing the documents necessary for a grant application, loan 
application, revenue bond sale application, the necessary resolutions to adjust the wastewater 
rate and schedules as needed, and any other applications or documents required to obtain total 
funding for the project. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 7th day of October 2014. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

1 

64



 
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, Esq.,  City Clerk   Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Adopted:    
Published:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

65



 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
The Wastewater Treatment Plant Reconstruction Project is a complete reconstruction and 
expansion of the City’s Wastewater Treatment facility.  The purpose and intent of the project is 
to construct the necessary wastewater treatment infrastructure capacity to increase public 
health protection and compliance with safe drinking water regulations, and to incorporate such 
infrastructure improvements required to expand the quantity of wastewater which can be 
treated and the quality of effluent produced.  In addition the City also recognizes the need to 
improve drinking water quality, both locally and regionally. 
 
The funding requirements of the Project are significant, and will require the utilization of 
multiple forms of funding sources including, but not limited to, system development fees, 
wastewater rate revenues, wastewater revenue bond proceeds, grants, and public infrastructure 
borrowings such as State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans and Public Works Trust Fund Loans, if 
available.   
 
The purpose of the proposed funding resolution is to authorize the Mayor and staff to designate 
and reserve the specific forms of funding sources necessary to complete the construction of the 
plant, and to classify the fund sources on hand as prescribed per Governmental Accounting 
Standards (GASB) Statement No. 54.  The funding sources would be allocated between the 
following classifications: 

 
1)  Restricted Funding Sources:  Resources that are either imposed by exterior creditors, 
grantors, or contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or those constraints 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  Examples of 
restricted funding sources are revenue bond, grant, or loan proceeds, REET funds, or any other 
funds where the use is constrained by external enabling legislation or a contractual agreement.  
  
2) Committed Funding Sources:  Resources that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City’s highest level of decision making 
authority.  Examples of committed funding sources are those system development fees required 
to be a component of the overall funding package. 
 
3) Assigned Funding Sources:  Resources that are constrained by the City’s intent to be 
used for project purposes, and that are neither restricted nor committed.  Intent may be 
expressed by a body or official to which the governing body has delegated the authority to 
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 
 
The descriptions of the relevant funding sources are as follows: 
 
REET Funds 
 
The City of Oak Harbor collects Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) in two separate ¼% 
increments, commonly referred to as REET I and REET II.  REET II is more restrictive on 
eligible cost items per State statute and must be accounted for separately from REET I.  REET 

3 
 

66



I and REET II are collected and distributed using Fund #311 1st ¼% REET and Fund #312 2nd 
¼% REET. 
 
The Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Project qualifies for both REET I & REET II 
funds as the eligible utility and related ancillary improvements are incorporated in the City’s 
Capital Improvement Plan.  For REET I, the City may use these funds for any capital purpose 
identified in a capital improvements plan and local capital improvements.  For REET II, the 
City may use these funds for capital projects, with the exception of the acquisition of park land, 
defined as follows: 

Public works projects of a local government for planning, acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, repair, replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement of streets, roads, 
highways, sidewalks, street and road lighting systems, traffic signals, bridges, domestic 
water systems, storm and sanitary sewer systems, and planning, construction, 
reconstruction, repair, rehabilitation, or improvement of parks (RCW 82.46.035(5)).  

While REET funds leave ample discretionary room for usage in the Wastewater treatment plant 
project, the funds are somewhat limited due to their originating source being development 
activity which has been limited in recent years.  In addition, REET funds are an integral 
funding source for other CIP projects. 

Utility Rate and Fee Component Funding 
 
The Wastewater Fund #402 assesses utility rate charges and related fees for operational 
purpose based on usage by participating City utility customers.  In anticipation of the funding 
requirement for the Project, system development fee revenues have been reserved, and 
wastewater rates have been incrementally increased, over the last four years to provide the 
necessary working capital to fund the initial design phase of the project, and to build the 
Wastewater Fund cash reserves to a combined contribution level $15 million—representing the 
City’s cash contribution to the project funding package.   
 
Department of Ecology (DOE): Water Quality Financial Assistance Programs 
 
The Washington State Department of Ecology’s Water quality Program administers three main 
funding programs under an integrated annual funding cycle—the Centennial Clean Water 
Program, the Clean Water Act Section 319 Program, and the Water Pollution Control 
Revolving Fund Program.  DOE awards loans and grants on a competitive basis to eligible 
public entities, on an annual basis, for high priority water quality projects.   
 
The City of Oak Harbor intends to apply under the following sub-categories of DOE funding 
 

1)  Preconstruction:  Eligible preconstruction projects include facility planning, design, 
rate studies, sewer use ordinance, and value engineering, subject to meeting certain 
economic criteria.  The City meets both qualification criteria of (a) less than 25,000 in 
population, and (b) a median household income (MHI) falling below the state MHI.  
The City has already applied for and has received tentative approval for preconstruction 
funding under the DOE 2015 funding cycle in the amount of $11.46 million. 
Unfortunately, the City does not qualify for hardship funding for preconstruction as the 

4 
 

67



City’s MHI of 85.536% does not fall under the required 80% rule.   
  

2) Hardship:  Waster facility projects are eligible for financial hardship consideration if (a) 
the entity population is less than 25,000, and (b) financing the project without subsidy 
would cause existing residential sewer fees to be two percent or more of the MHI.  The 
City qualifies under both of these criteria.  With the City’s existing ratio of residential 
sewer rates to MHI exceeding the minimum 2% rule (2.5164%), the City may qualify 
under the “Moderate” hardship category for 20-year loans at 40% of market rate, and 
grants or forgivable principle of 50% up to a maximum of $5 million (See Table 1 
below).  The City initially intends to apply for funding in both the 2016 and 2017 future 
funding cycles.  Total estimated funding for construction under the hardship category is 
estimated at $30 million. 

 

 
3) Other programs:  DOE also administers other wastewater infrastructure funding 

programs including the Centennial Clean Water Program, and the Clean Water Section 
319 Nonpoint Source Grant Program.  The City intends to investigate its eligibility to 
receive funding under these programs, subject to meeting eligibility requirements. 

 
Public Works Trust Fund Loans 
 
During the 2013 legislative session, legislators finally reached a compromise on the operating 
budget that included the transfer of significant revenues from the capital budget.  Most notably, 
the legislature transferred all available funds from the Public Works Assistance Account 
(PWAA, also commonly referred to as the Public Works Trust Fund) and directed most of the 
future tax revenues for the PWAA into K-12 education for the next six years.  Possible funding 
may be available with certain restrictions (rejection of SRF application by DOE).  There is 
considerable effort in place through AWC and other entities to have the funds reinstated.  
However, the probability of these funds being available as a funding source for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant project is remote at this time.  Staff will continue to monitor the status of the 
upcoming budget deliberations at the State level for opportunities to apply for this form of low 
interest rate funding, and will immediately apply for consideration if funding becomes 
available. 
 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) General Purpose Grants 
 
The Washington State Department of Commerce administers the CDBG General Purpose 
Grant program intended to improve the economic, social and physical environment of eligible, 
rural cities and counties and to enhance the quality of life for low- and moderate-income 
residents, and as a result, assists the entire community.  Small, rural cities/towns and counties 
not entitled to receive CDBG funds directly from HUD.  Cities and towns with less than 
50,000 in population, not participating in a CDBG Entitlement Urban County Consortium may 
apply for funding.  Activities must principally benefit low- and moderate-income persons.  

5 
 

68



Low- and moderate-income is defined as 80 percent of county median income.  Applicants 
may submit one request per fund each program year.  The City of Oak Harbor is “pre-
qualified” under Commerce regulations to as a qualified entity to apply for grant funding under 
this program.  Approximately $9,500,000 is expected to be available for General Purpose 
Grants in 2014.  The maximum grant amount is $750,000 or $1 million if higher funding 
criteria are met.  According to Commerce information materials, this highly competitive 
process results in an average award amount of approximately $600,000 per applicant.  
Commerce encourages applicants to identify specific components of a project that will benefit 
low- to moderate- income residents.  The City intends to apply for this Grant program for the 
2015 through 2017 funding cycles. 
 
Other Grants 
 
The City will continue to investigate other grant opportunities via the E-Civis grant research 
application, and through the various State agencies as funding becomes available. 
 
State of Washington Governor’s Capital Budget 
 
In sequence with the State budget process, the City will be applying for an appropriation at the 
State level for from the Governor’s Capital Budget.  Finance staff will be applying through 
Senator Barbara Bailey’s, the City’s sponsor, to compete for funding in this program. 
 
Wastewater Revenue Bond Funding 
 
Wastewater revenue bonds are municipal bonds that are secured by specific wastewater income 
of the City.  The method of securing the loan is what distinguishes them from general 
obligation bonds (or GO bonds).  GO bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the 
municipality that issues them.  Revenue bonds are municipal bonds that finance income-
producing projects.  The income generated by these projects pays revenue bondholders their 
interest and principal.  Projects funded by revenue bonds serve only those in the community 
who pay for their services.  It is the City’s intention to issue Wastewater revenue bonds as the 
majority funding source for the Project.  The revenue bond proceeds will fund Project costs not 
covered by other funding sources described above.  Current estimates suggest a revenue bond 
issue in the amount of approximately $37.8 million.  This issue amount may fluctuate as the 
GCCM/MAC drivers are negotiated, as project design nears a higher level of completion, as 
new funding sources are made available, and as the commitment for funding sources from 
external parties, such as DOE SRF funding, becomes more evident.   
 
Estimated funding schedule 
 
The total estimated project costs provided by Carollo, and the related funding targets are as 
follows: 
 

6 
 

69



Total Project Costs (2013 $$ escalated at 3%) $94,863,734 $94,863,734

Funding Sources
Wastewater Utility Rates/SDFs $15,000,000 $15,000,000

DOE Srf Program
2015 Cycle $11,460,000
2016 cycle 15,000,000
2017 cycle $0 0 $15,000,000 41,460,000

CDBG General Purpose Grant 600,000

Wastewater Revenue Bond Issue 79,863,734 37,803,734
     Total Funding Sources $94,863,734 $94,863,734

Targeted Funding PlanCurrent Funding Plan

 
 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 14-29 which affirms the 
City’s commitment to constructing the Project by specifically designating certain economic 
resources necessary to fund the total construction costs of the Project. 

 

7 
 

70



71



RESOLUTION NO. 14-35 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR ADOPTING THE 
LABOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR (EMPLOYER) AND 
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 231 – MARINA (UNION) .   

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor and Teamsters labor agreement will commence upon 
Council approval and will terminate December 31, 2016;  and  

WHEREAS, The City of Oak Harbor and Teamsters Union, Local 231, have engaged in 
mediation and have settled the issues of contract language, wage adjustments and the 
termination of the medical “opt out program” money for impacted employees in the bargaining 
unit. 

NOWTHEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Oak 
Harbor that:  

Section1.  The labor agreement between The City of Oak Harbor (Employer) and; Teamsters 
Local 231 – Marina (Union), commencing upon Council approval, is hereby adopted.   

Section2.  This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this 7th day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 
Adopted: 
Published:  

Resolution No. 14-35 72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



ORDINANCE NO. 1698 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR TO AMEND THE 2013-2014 
BIENNIAL BUDGET FOR REQUIRED INCREASES IN 2014 APPROPRIATION 
AUTHORITY. 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that a budget amendment is needed for fiscal year 2014 of 
the 2013-2014 Biennial Budget for required increases in 2014 appropriation authority; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that a budget amendment is needed to increase the 2014 
General Fund #001 appropriation authority in the amount of $335,020.00 to provide funding for 
the restructuring of the Human Resources Department, to provide for capital repair and 
maintenance costs at the animal shelter, to provide training registration funding for the City 
Clerk position, and to provide funding for the contracting of legal services during the interim 
City Attorney transition period; the funding source for this amendment component shall be an 
$200,000.00 increase in budgeted receipts for unanticipated increases in state sales taxes, a 
$105,000.00 increase in building and permit fees, and $30,000.00 increase in revenues to be 
received from Forest City for city-provided animal control services; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that a budget amendment is needed to increase the 2014 
Reserves Fund #002 appropriation authority to increase the stabilization account balance to the 
required 25% minimum in the amount of $64,250.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that a budget amendment is needed to reduce the 2014 
Arterials Fund #104 appropriation authority in the amount of $2,350,000.00 as a result of the 
deferment of the 7th Avenue Reconstruction until a future period of time; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that a budget amendment is needed to increase the 2014 
Civic Improvement Fund #116 revenues in the amount of $126,000 resulting from an operating 
transfer-in of lodging tax funds held in the Windjammer Redevelopment Fund #325. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do hereby ordain as follows: 

Section One:  The revenues and expenditures for the applicable funds are hereby amended for 
the budget year 2014 as set forth below: 

Previous Amended
Fund Fund # Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund #001 $12,582,462 $335,020 $12,917,482
Reserves Fund #002 $3,214,372 $64,250 $3,278,622
Arterials Fund #104 $3,290,000 ($2,350,000) $940,000
Civic Improvement Fund (2%) #116 $593,375 $126,000 $719,375

Section Two:  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

ORDINANCE NO.1698 - Page 1 of 2 
105



 
Section Three:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect five days after publication as 
provided by law. 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 7th day of October, 2014. 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 

 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  

 

ORDINANCE NO.1698 - Page 2 of 2 
106



107



ORDINANCE NO. 1701 

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH FUND NO.127 PARK IMPACT FEES FUND 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECEIVING AND ACCUMULATING PARK IMPACT 
FEES, TO MAKE PAYMENT ON ELIGIBLE CLAIMS AS THEY BECOME 
DUE, AND TO ACCOUNT FOR THE RELATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
OF ELIGIBLE PROJECTS DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE. 

WHEREAS, proper public notice has been given, and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to establish a new fund to serve as a set of books used to 
record the revenues and expenditures pertaining to the collection, accumulation, and 
disbursement of park impact fees. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
do hereby ordain as follows: 

Section One. There is hereby created under Title 3 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code a 
new Chapter 3.29 entitled: “Park Impact Fees Fund” 

Section Two. There is hereby added a new section 3.29.010 entitled “Fund Created” to 
Chapter 3.29 to read as follows: 

3.29.010 Fund Created.  There is hereby created a special Fund No. 127 Park Impact 
Fees Fund that shall be used for the purpose of receiving and accumulating funds, to 
make payment on eligible claims as they become due, and to account for the related 
assets and liabilities of eligible projects during the construction phase. 

Section Three. There is hereby added a new section 3.29.020 entitled “Accounting” to 
Chapter 3.29 to read as follows: 

3.29.020 Accounting.  The City shall keep such books, accounts, and records necessary 
to administer and report the financial activities of the Park Impact Fees Fund. 

Section Four. There is hereby added a new section 3.29.030 entitled “Use Restricted” to 
Chapter 3.29 to read as follows: 

3.29.030 Use Restricted.  Any withdrawals or expenditures from said Park Impact Fees 
Fund shall be made only upon approved vouchers of the City for the purpose established 
for said fund. 

Section Five: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days 
after its passage and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED by the City Council this 7th day of October, 2014. 

Ordinance No. 1701:  Park Impact Fees Fund No. 127 
108



 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________  _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  
 

Ordinance No. 1701:  Park Impact Fees Fund No. 127 
109



110



111



Professional  Services Agreement 
Amendment Number ____2______ 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4539 

Original Agreement Title: 
 
WWTP Archaeological Services 

Project Number: 
 
ENG-13-05 

Execution Date 
 
5/7/2013 

Completion Date (Prior) 
 
12/31/2014 

Project Title 
 
City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant  

New Maximum Amount Payable 
 
$236,513.48 
 

Description of Work 
Provide archaeological services related to the new wastewater treatment plant. 
 
 
The City of Oak Harbor   desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International and executed on    5/7/2013    and identified as 
 Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
  See attached scope of work and fee. ________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following: 
 NO CHANGE. _________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Amendment No. 2 10/2/2014 Page 1 of 2 

112



PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: December 31, 2015 _________________ 
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
 Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary to assist in the permitting process for the 
proposed wastewater treatment plant property.  The maximum amount payable under the 
contract is increased by $21,660.50, from $214,852.98 to $236,513.48.      
              
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
By:         By:        
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 

 
Amendment No. 2 10/2/2014 Page 2 of 2 

113



 
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete, WA 98237 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com  

 

 

September 26, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

Joe Stowell, City Engineer 
City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Drive 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

 

Re: Scope and Budget for Planning and Permitting Process for the WWTP Phase II, Oak 

Harbor, Washington 

 

Dear Mr. Stowell: 

 

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. 

(ERCI) for your cultural resource management needs. ERCI provides a full service 

cultural resource management program and we look forward to providing you timely and 

professional fieldwork and reporting.  

 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA, Executive Order 

05-05 and a number of state RCW regulations require agencies to consider the effects of 

their actions on historic properties and to consult with others in carrying out historic 

preservation activities.  In providing cultural resource management services for clients, 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) works in accordance with all 

applicable laws and regulations. 

 

We understand that the State Department of Ecology is the Lead Agency for Cultural 

Resources and that your funding is in part coming through the EPA.   We expect that 

permitting documents may include a Monitoring Plan, Unanticipated Discoveries 

Protocol, Memorandum of Agreement or other plans. 

 

 Prepare for and participate in project planning/orientation meetings with the City 

of Oak Harbor and the Department of Ecology, and individual meetings with 

affected federally recognized Tribes.  

 The Final Section 106 documents for the Department of Ecology may include: 

o Unanticipated Discoveries Protocol  

o Monitoring Plan with contingencies for unexpected deposits 

o Memorandum of Agreement should Historic Properties be affected by 

your project. 

114

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


Planning and Permitting Oak Harbor WWTP Phase II 2 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

o background research on project and study area 

o field and lab methods delineation and standards for field work at all sites 

o Analysis and reporting standards and deliverables, including schedules for 

evaluative points for each step of project implementation. 

o Correspondence related to curation of documents and reburial of 

recovered objects. 

 

 

Qualifications: 

 

 13 years experience working in Western Washington.  

 Principal investigator and 4 senior archaeologists meet the Secretary of Interior’s 

professional qualification standards for archaeology 

 Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington 

 Experience in State Laws, SEPA and permitting, Executive Order 05-05,  NHPA 

Section 106 work and meshing with NEPA. 

 Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes who are consulting 

parties on this project. 

 Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs 

 Strong record of completing work on time within budget 

 

The following budget covers all costs associated with the consultation, correspondence, 

and research and writing of the archaeological permit application required to complete 

the planning process for the WWTP Phase II. 

 

The following costs are not included in this estimate: 

 None of the field work, reporting or public outreach is included in this estimate.  

This is a stand alone budget just for the archaeological permitting. 

 

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties 

who pride themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest 

quality product in a timely fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details; 

www.equinoxerci.com .  

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for this 

recovery work and we look forward to working with you. 

 

Regards, 

 
Kelly R. Bush 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 

 

 

115

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


Planning and Permitting Oak Harbor WWTP Phase II 3 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

Description Units Rate/HR  Sub Total  

Project Orientation and planning; logistical planning 

and methods; meetings for/with The City of Oak 

Harbor. 

30.00 143.75             4,312.50  

Archival background research for permit: Previous 

Archaeology, History, Geomorphology 

6.00 97.75 586.50 

Consultation with affected Tribes regarding methods 

and other permit issues. 

16.00 143.75 2,300.00 

Consultation with Agencies regarding permit including 

methods. 

24.00 143.75 3,450.00 

Document control for eventual curation, transcriptions 

of field and meeting notes, photo logs, site forms for 

outliers for permit application. 

16.00 63.25 1,012.00 

Document Editing and Formal Review 4.00 143.75 575.00 

Writing of Agreement Documents and associated 

correspondence 

40.00 97.75 3,910.00 

Graphics 24.00 97.75 2,346.00 

Document layout, production and distribution 6.00 63.25 379.50 

SUB TOTAL     18,871.50 

Travel (travel to Oak Harbor and tribal offices) 50.00 34.50 1725.00 

Mileage (to Oak Harbor and tribal offices) 1900.00 0.56 1064.00 

SUB TOTAL     2,789.00 

GRAND TOTAL         21,660.50  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

116



Professional Services Agreement Organization and Address
Amendment Number 1

City of Oak Harbor
Original Agreement Title 865 SE Barrington Drive

Oak Harbor WA 98239
WWTP Archaeological Services

Phone 3602794539

Project Number Execution Date Completion Date Prior

ENG13 05 572013 12312013

Project Title New Maximum Amount Payable

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 21485298
Plant

Description of Work
Provide archaeological services related to the new wastewater treatment plant

The City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Equinox
Research and Consulting International and executed on 572013 and identified as

Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this
supplement

The changes to the agreement are described as follows

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following
See attached scope of work and fee

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following
NO CHANGE

Amendment No 1 12302013 Page 1 of 2117



PROJECT COMPLETION DATEAMENDED 10 December 31 014

PAYMENT shall he amended as follows

Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary to perforrn due diligence on the proposed
wastewater treatment plant property The maximum amount payable under the contract is
increased h 19832001from 51633298 to 521483298 as outlined in theattachcd slope of
vork

Payment shall he made in accordanceqtth the terms and conditions described in the original
contract

It you concur Nyith this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above please sign in the
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action

Consult arn Llnature iii Autho y Sin re

Ainendnmmt N 1 I 31211 Idg

118



I1
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 3608264830 wwweguinoxercicom

November 21 2013

Joe Stowell City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Intensive Field Survey for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facilities Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for your
cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management program
and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 05 05
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with others
in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of RCWs and
associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing cultural resource
management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI works in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

This project currently has no Federal nexus and so we expect that we will require a permit from the State
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation to carry out this survey work as we expect to
encounter disturbed shell midden deposits and we may encounter intact shell midden deposits and will
want to test and evaluate these deposits

This scope doesnt include safety fencing and we believe that during the testing in Windjammer Park that
will be a significant issue Although fewer people use the park in winter it is still difficult to keep people
back from our testing trenches We hope the City will provide some assistance with this challenge

We are providing this scope and budget for approximately 2000 feet of machine testing and
approximately 75 shovel test holes in the attached APE We understand that you are in the buysell phase
of land acquisition and that this is the final site selection for the new WWTP facility The data we collect
during this intensive testing will be used as the identification and evaluation phase of the project for
cultural resources Should any cultural material be encountered our permit application would allow us to
test and evaluate that material and collect data useful in adding to a mitigation data recovery plan and to
evaluate and cultural resources for eligibility to the National Register

The Scope activities include

Write a permit application for the Washington State DAHP
Carry out machine testing with approximately 2000 feet of machine testing as per the attached
map

Carry out supplementary shovel testing up to 75 shovel test holes

119



Provide a preliminary analysis of all historic and precontact artifacts and prepare them for
curation at the Burke Museum This includes up to 5 boxes of artifacts including any faunalremains

Provide report to state and federal standards

Provide a backhoe and operator for the machine trenching
Assumptions

Human remains will be encountered only once during the testing program
Only 5 boxes of artifacts and faunal material will be encountered during the testing
No additional plans or protocols are included in this scope Should we need to file an amended
permit for additional data recovery that would be outside this scope
Costs associated will completing an HPIF historic property inventory form for the existingfacilities is outside this scope

Qualifications

Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works systems andinfrastructure

Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification standards for
archaeology

Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 0505 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains
Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project areaand experience in tribal consultation

Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

We expect the field work to take approximately 5 weeks from start to finish We will need 3 days to set
up the testing area Then we will have a full crew for 20 days and then a smaller crew for an additional 5
days that includes final mapping and clean up We will not be working weekends unless weather becomes
the critical successfailure element and we have windows of clear weather that allows us to proceedBased on our experience last year weather is a critical player in visibility and will certainly be an issuefor this more precise work

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a timelyfashion Please check out our web site for additional details wwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor
Regards

Kelly R Bush

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey ZEquinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

120



i a is f

fzk

mow

fia
3

n fib

d 441
yu

h

X19 4
n

i

40 iiHt
lottllt

042P14Fii e424z i
de j

l 9

y

4i4S mss

101114
r y

aFryi aY

4L

4i1 41r471h

ms

t ycfi

Figure 1 Proposedapproximate testing trench locations in yellow

3City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

121



Description Units RateHR Sub Total
Project Orientation meetings and project management 1200 14325 171900
Historic geoarch and archival background research 600 9775 58650
Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes 800 14325 114600
Detennine Eligibility of identified historic properties
for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 200 14375 28750

Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 1200 14375 172500how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Write Permit for survey 1800 9775 175950
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 1200 14325 171900
Document controlfield forms transcriptions site forms 9600 6375 612000lab data management 2400 6375 153000
Report editing 400 14325 57300
Report writing 3200 9775 312800
Graphics layout 4800 9775 469200Curation Preparation 8000 6375 510000Curation Per box costs 1000 150000 1500000
SUB TOTAL

Field Work
4508550

DESCRIPTION
Units Rates Sub Total

Principal Investigator 3000 14375 431250
Senior Archaeologist Field Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Senior Archaeologist LabField Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Physical Anthropologist 4000 11500 460000
Archaeological Labfield Technician 20000 7475 1495000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Equipment Rental Backhoe and operator 1500 90000 1350000
Travel time

20000 4000 800000
Accommodation weekly 400 62500 250000
Per Diem daily 8000 6100 488000
Mileage 320000 056 179200
SUB TOTAL

15343450

GRAND TOTAL
19852000

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey 4
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

122



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this day o

2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal core tion

hereinafter referred to as the CITY and Equinox Research and Consulting International
hereinafter referred to as the SERVICE PROVIDER

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on May 7 2013 and shall be completed no later than December
31 2013 unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows1433298

4 Reports and Inspections

Professional Services Agreement 1 123



41 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may
require shall furnish to the CITY such statements records reports data and
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this
Agreement

42 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as
often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary make available for
examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered directly
or indirectly by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated
authorized representative to audit and inspect other data relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports
made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities The
CITY may at its discretion conduct an audit at its expense using its own or
outside auditors of the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities that relate directly or
indirectly to this Agreement

5 Independent Contractor Relationship

51 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDERCITYrelationship
will be created by this Agreement The CITY is interested primarily in the results
to be achieved subject to paragraphs herein the implementation of services will
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER No agent employee
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an

employee agent servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose and the
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the
CITY provides for its employees The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents employees servants
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement

52 In the performance of the services herein contemplated the SERVICE
PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct
the performance of the details of the work however the results of the work
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to
the CITYSgeneral rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory
completion thereof

6 Service Provider Employeesagents

The CITY may at its sole discretion require the SERVICE PROVIDER to remove an
employeesagentsor servantsfrom employment on this Project The SERVICE
PROVIDER may however employ that those individualson other nonCITY related
projects

Professional Services Agreement 2 124



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3 125



82 Minimum Amounts of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the
following insurance limits

a Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage of One Million Dollars1000000
per accident

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no
less than One Million Dollars1000000 each occurrence Two Million
Dollars2000000 general aggregate

c Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than
One Million Dollars1000000 per claim and One Million Dollars
1000000 policy aggregate limit

83 Other Insurance Provisions The insurance policies are to contain or be endorsed
to contain the following provisions for Automobile Liability Professional
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance

a The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance coverage shall be primary
insurance with respect to the City Any insurance self insurance or
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the
SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance and shall not contribute with it

b The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance shall be endorsed to state that
coverage shall not be cancelled by either party except after thirty 30
days prior written notice by certified mail return receipt requested has
been given to the City

84 Acceptability of Insurers Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current
AM Best rating of not less thanAVII

85 Verification of Coverage SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with
original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including but not
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement evidencing the
insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of
the work

9 Treatment of Assets

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the
CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents if any prepared
by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement

Professional Services Agreement 4 126



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5 127



discrimination The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately
preceding paragraphs herein

12 Assignmentsubcontracting

121 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the
CITY and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty 30 days prior to the date of any
proposed assignment The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any
such assignment

122 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this
Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local
state andor federal statutes ordinances and guidelines

123 Any technicalprofessional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement must
have express advance approval by the CITY

13 Changes

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided
hereunder however no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding
upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both parties
Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement

14 Maintenance and Inspection of Records

141 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books records and documents which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid
pursuant to this Agreement These records shall be subject at all reasonable times
to inspection review or audit by the CITY its authorized representative the
State Auditor or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this
Agreement

142 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books records documents and other
material relevant to this Agreement for six 6 years after its expiration The
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said
period

Professional Services Agreement 6 128



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7 129



192 Any action of law suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of
this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County Washington

20 Severability

201 If for any reason any part term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court
of the United States to be illegal void or unenforceable the validity of the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and the rights and obligations of the
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the
particular provision held to be invalid

202 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory
provision of the State of Washington said provision that may conflict therewith
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions

21 Entire Agreement

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and
any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded Further
any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties
Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a material
breach of contract and be cause for termination Both parties recognize time is of the
essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement It is also agreed by the
parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day
and year first hereinabove written

CITY SERVICE PROVIDER

CITY OF OAK HARBOR Equinox Research Consulting International
865 SE Barrington Drive 41507 South Skagit Highway
Oak Harbor WA 98277 Concrete WA 982 7

cot rudley Mayor Kelly Bush President

Attes

4116
Valerie Loffl ity Cler

Professional Services Agreement 8 130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139


	October 7, 2014 Regular City Council Agenda
	Proclamation in Recognition of Community Planning Month
	C/A 4.a City Council Minutes
	September 16, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes
	September 24, 2014 Workshop & Special Meeting Minutes
	September 29, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes

	C/A 4.b Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
	Voucher Listings

	C/A 4.c Stormwater Code Amendment - Latecomer Agreements
	Ordinance No. 1699

	C/A 4.d Planning Commission Appointment - Cecil Pierce
	Biography of Cecil Pierce

	C/A 4.e Contract - MRSC Rosters
	MRSC Roster Contract
	MRSC Roster System Portal

	6.a Ordinance No. 1697: Park Impact Fees
	Ordinance No. 1697

	6.b Resolution No. 14-29: Waste Water Treatement Plant Funding Commitment
	Resolution No. 14-29

	6.c City of Oak Harbor & Teamsters Local 231 Labor Agreement (Marina)
	Resolution No. 14-35
	Labor Agreement between City of Oak Harbor & Teamsters Local 231 Labor Agreement -Marina
	Appendix A: Classifications
	Appendix B: Wages

	7.a Ordinance No. 1698: Budget Amendment
	Ordinance No. 1698

	7.b Ordinance No. 1701: Establish Fund No. 127 Park Impact Fees Fund
	Ordinance No. 1701

	9.a Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) - Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consultants International (ERCI)- Amendment No. 2
	Amendment No. 2 
	Amendment No. 1
	Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - May 7, 2013

	9.b Marina Commerical Use: Seafood Buying & Selling Opteration
	Site Map
	WA State Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Lease Amendment





